AMOS KENDALL

Founder of Kendall School

By Lance J. Fischer

Retired Archivist

This presentation was prepared by the
author with the intention of remembering
and honoring Amos Kendall for his great
contributions. It has been edited for the
web to show the life of Kendall and his
involvement in the establishment of
Kendall Demonstration Elementary
School.

Amos Kendall by Matthew Brady (National Archives)
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AMOS KENDALL is

| among the least studied
& person in deaf history and
' deaf studies.
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AMOS KENDALL

Life Summary

1789 Born in Dunstable, 1828
Massachusetts

1828
1807 Graduated from Lawrence
Academy, Groton,
Massachusetts

1811 Studied law at Dartmouth
College

Kendall moved to Frankfort, Kentucky,

worked as a lawyer, became involved in
politics, and edited the Argus of Western
America.

A republican, he later became a
Jacksonian democrat.

Came to Washington,
D.C.

Became the fourth auditor

In the Treasury Department
and a member of the
“Kitchen Cabinet” of
President Andrew Jackson.
Jackson’s friend, Kendall
wrote most of the president’s
annual addresses and drafted
Jackson's veto of the bill to
re-charter the Second Bank
of the United States.
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AMOS KENDALL

Life Summary (continued)

Appointed U.S. postmaster
general by President Andrew
Jackson and by President Martin
Van Buren. Reorganized the
Post Office Department and led
the establishment of the “Pony
Express” service. Served until
1840.

1855

1857

Business manager for Samuel
F. B. Morse, inventor of the
telegraph. During the next 15
years, both men made
fortunes.
1864

Began to devote his life to
philanthropy. He made many
contributions to churches and
established a school for deaf
students.

Founded the Columbia
Institution for the
Instruction of the Deaf and
Dumb and the Blind, and
served as president and on
the Board of Trustees until
his death.

Gets a law signed enabling
the Columbia Institution to
grant collegiate degrees.



Kendall Green

The property that Kendall bought, re-named “Kendall Green,” would
eventually become the home of Kendall Demonstration Elementary
School, the Model Secondary School for the Deaf, and
Gallaudet University.

1841

1845

Kendall purchased property just outside of

Washington, D.C. The property was
known as the Brentwood Farm, and he
bought it from John and Anna Farley for
$9,000.

The mortgage was paid and the deed
iIssued. Kendall used the land to build a
summer home.



The Buildings of Kendall Green

(prior to the founding of a school)

< Rose Cottage. The original summer home of
Kendall and his family, this building was
: demolished in 1877 to make space for the
construction of Chapel Hall.

— Kendall’s house. Built later, this house was
constructed on the site where Fowler Hall is today.

< Kendall Mansion. When the original house and the Rose
Cottage became part of the new school, Kendall moved into a
mansion that was later rebuilt as a farm house. The farm house was
demolished around 1964-65 to make space for construction of new
dormitories, Krug Hall and Cogswell Hall (now called Ballard
West and Ballard North).




Map of Kendall Green, 1857




Map of Kendall Green, 1885




1856
Establishing a School for Deaf Children

Platt H. Skinner brought several

deaf children to Washington, D.C.
He used the children to solicit
funds, and he promised to put the
money toward a school for the
children.

<= Correspondence between

Skinner and Kendall, dated October
25, 1865.




Realizing that Washington, D.C., needed a school for deaf children, Kendall
supported Skinner’s plan. Thanks to Kendall, a law to incorporate the school was
passed in three months and signed by President Franklin Pierce on February 16,
1857. The new school was called the Columbia Institution for the Instruction of
the Deaf and Dumb and the Blind.

The act establishing the Columbia Institution for the Instruction of
the Deaf and Dumb and the Blind that would later become Kendall

School




FRAUD! unfortunately, Skinner was a fraud. Articles appeared accusing him
of cruelty and inhumanity to the children in his care.




Kendall filed a complaint with the district attorney. Skinner was then
brought before the court on a writ of Habeas Corpus on February 28,
1857. Kendall adopted the deaf children.

Documents of the Orphans Court granting custody of five deaf children to Amos Kendall on
April 16, 1857



Kendall’s Search for a Superintendent

Finding himself with a new
school and new children,
Kendall began to search for a
superintendent. Finally he
contacted Edward M.
Gallaudet, son of the famous
Thomas H. Gallaudet who had
helped found deaf education in
the United States. Kendall paid
Gallaudet and the school’s staff
and operating expenses himself.

< Letter from Kendall to Gallaudet




School Buildings

(During the initial years)

— New school building,
1859. Built for about $8,000
paid by Kendall, and in use
until 1885.

<= Rose Cottage, the first
building of the Institution,
1857-1859.




Rose Cottage and the old Fowler Hall consisted of the Primary
Department and the new school buildings, ca.1866.
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First Graduation
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Kendall lived to see the first
graduation of the Columbia
Institution for the Instruction
of the Deaf and Dumb and
the Blind. Three men
received their degrees,
signed by Kendall. One of
the graduates, Isaac Winn,
had been adopted by
Kendall.

<= The first diploma and Kendall’s
signature



Kendall’s Gravesite

Kendall died on November 12, 1869,

five months after the first graduation

in the new school, at 80 years old. He
Is buried along with his second wife,

Jane Kendall, at Glenwood Cemetery
in Washington, D.C.




Recommended Readings

Stickney, W. (Editor). (1872). Autobiography of Amos
Kendall. Boston: Lee and Shepard; New York: Lee,
Shepard, and Dillingham.

Fischer, L. J., & de Lorenzo, D. L. (Editors). (1983).
History of the college for the deaf, 1857-1907 (written
by E. M. Gallaudet). Washington, DC: Gallaudet
College Press.




HERITAGE

Our heritage: Gallaudet College centennial. (1964).
Solicited and compiled by the Centennial Souvenir
Book Committee headed by Reuben 1. Altizer,
chairman, and sponsored by the District of Columbia
Chapter, Gallaudet College Alumni Association.
Washington, DC: Graphic Arts Press.



[ The documents and photographs used in this
presentation are courtesy of the National Archives
and Records Administration and the Gallaudet
University Archives.]



